
 
 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

Meeting: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Date and Time: FRIDAY, 8 MARCH 2024 AT 9.30 AM 
 

Place: COUNCIL CHAMBER - APPLETREE COURT, BEAULIEU 
ROAD, LYNDHURST, SO43 7PA 
 

Enquiries to: Email: joe.tyler@nfdc.gov.uk 
Tel: 023 8028 5982 
 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Members of the public may watch this meeting live on the Council’s website. 

Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public 
participation scheme: 

(a) on items within the General Purposes and Licensing Committee’s terms of 
reference which are not on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls the 
public participation item; and/or 

(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.  
Speeches may not exceed three minutes. 

Anyone wishing to speak should contact the name and number shown above no later 
than 12.00 noon on Tuesday, 5 March 2024. 

 
Kate Ryan 
Chief Executive 
 
Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA 
www.newforest.gov.uk 
 
This agenda can be viewed online (https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk).   

It can also be made available on audio tape, in Braille and large print. 
 

 

AGENDA 
 Apologies 

 

1.   MINUTES  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2023 and 5 January 2024 
as a correct record. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 

https://democracy.newforest.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.newforest.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C01%7C%7Cda8bae757d184b194a9e08dabcb628f4%7C09969afd0c3043739fd3ce5bbbf19141%7C0%7C0%7C638029787794355893%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pyITIEABv8zOwjB4qtZ8V3vP2XsLS7LRjl2qb%2F8qQYI%3D&reserved=0


 
 

 

agenda item.  The nature of the interest must also be specified. 
 
Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 To receive any public participation in accordance with the Council’s public 
participation scheme. 
 

4.   TAXI FEES AND CHARGES 2024-2025 (Pages 3 - 36) 

 To consider the objections to the proposed fees raised during the public 
consultation period and to set the level of taxi licensing fees for the financial year 
2024/25, effective from 1 April 2024. 
 
 

 
To: Councillors Councillors 

 
 Neil Tungate (Chairman) 

Richard Young (Vice-Chairman) 
Steve Clarke 
Jack Davies 
Philip Dowd 
Allan Glass 
David Harrison 
 

David Hawkins 
Nigel Linford 
Colm McCarthy 
Neil Millington 
Dave Penny 
Alvin Reid 
 

 



GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE – 8 MARCH 2024 
 

TAXI FEES AND CHARGES FOR 2024-2025 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1 That Members of General Purposes and Licensing Committee consider the objections 
to the proposed fees raised during the public consultation period.  
 

1.2 That the General Purposes and Licensing Committee set the level of taxi licensing fees 
for the financial year 2024/25 which are effective from 1 April 2024. 

 
 
2. INTRODUCTION 

2.1 As part of the annual review of budgets, decisions are required by the General 
Purposes and Licensing Committee to agree any non-statutory licensing fees and 
charges for the forthcoming financial year. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 The Council has a statutory responsibility for the administration and enforcement of a 
wide range of licences including those for taxi and private hire vehicles.   
 

3.2 At the General Purpose and Licensing Committee held on 5 January 2024, the taxi 
licensing fees proposed within the Fees and Charges for 2024-25 Report were approved 
for public consultation (in accordance with section 70 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.   

 
3.3 The proposed fees have been subject to a 28-day consultation period (from 12 January 

2024 to 8 February 2024) following advertisement in the local newspaper. Notice of the 
proposed fees has also been posted on the Council’s Taxi licensing web page and the 
notice board at the Council Offices at Appletree Court. 

 
3.4 The proposed fees for taxi licensing which were consulted on are provided as Appendix 

1. 
 

3.5 During the consultation period a total of 17 responses were received, objecting to the 
proposed fees.  These responses are provided as Appendix 2. 

 
 
4. ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

4.1 The basis for setting taxi and private hire fees is to ensure cost recovery, or as close to 
it as possible. Legal challenges in the past, have confirmed that licensing fees may not 
be used to generate a profit for councils but the burden to support taxi fees should also 
not fall on residents in the district. 
 

4.2 In order to support the trade in previous years, particularly during and after the covid 
pandemic, fees have not increased for 7 years. The last increase was in April 2017. 
Since the pandemic, the trade has been given time to recover and build up numbers of 
vehicles and drivers again.  

4.3 The proposed fees for the taxi and private hire function have been increased following 
a detailed review of the Council’s costs incurred to deliver each licence type, also taking 

3

Agenda Item 4



into account the cost of consumables (vehicle plates, brackets, driver badges) in addition 
to the revised cost of providing vehicle inspections. 

 
4.4 The fee review also takes into account the updated Department for Transport Statutory 

Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards, which requires Licensing Authorities to perform 
additional checks to promote public safety and best practice. These enhanced 
procedures require additional staff resource and have increased processing costs. 

 
4.5 Fees have been benchmarked against neighbouring local authorities. The 

benchmarking document is provided as Appendix 3 and whilst the fees vary, those 
proposed for NFDC are consistent and in many cases lower than neighbouring councils. 

 
4.6 Driver and private hire operator licence fees are proposed to be increased; however, 

these are issued on a 3 and 5 yearly basis. The proposed increases of £20.00 and 
£11.00 would be spread over these time periods. Other fee increases are one off fees 
(Driver Knowledge tests for new applicants) or for discretionary items (vehicle stepped 
plate).  

 
4.7 The annual vehicle licence fee has been increased to fully cover the costs of processing 

applications and as can been seen from the benchmarking data it is one of the lowest 
fees for this function across Hampshire. 
 

4.8 A new annual application fee for executive vehicle exemptions has been introduced, to 
cover the costs of processing of applications and inspections, to ensure the vehicle 
meets the required standard and the nature of the business meets the exemption criteria.  

 
 
5. OBJECTIONS RECEIVED 
 
5.1 During the consultation period, 17 responses were received, objecting to the proposed 

fees, as provided at Appendix 2. Responses in the main, object to any increase in fees 
based on the current cost of living crisis and the increase in costs of running vehicles 
(fuel, insurance, car lease, maintenance, phone bills and fees paid to operators) along 
with living expenses such as mortgages, council tax and food.  

 
5.2 Some objections fall outside the remit of this Fees and Charges report and relate to the 

consultation on the Draft Taxi Licensing Policy. The consultation period for the Licensing 
Policy runs until 15 April 2024 and responses will then be reviewed and considered.   

 
5.3 An increase to the taxi tariff has been proposed by a couple of objectors to cover the 

cost of these increases. The last review of the tariff took place in 2022 and it was agreed 
to be introduced in June of that year. In addition, any increase to the tariff would only 
apply to hackney carriages, (110 hackney carriages out of the current licensed vehicle 
fleet of 551). 
 
 

6. CONCLUSIONS 

6.1 The setting of discretionary fees for licensing must be formally approved by the Council’s 
General Purposes and Licensing Committee before they may be applied.  
 

6.2 Taxi licensing fees have not been increased since April 2017, in order to support the 
trade during and after the covid pandemic, whereas other licensing fees have been 
reviewed on an annual basis and increased in line with inflation.   

6.3 The setting of the proposed licensing fees and charges has been through a rigorous 
process, to cost the delivery of the service to businesses and members of the public. 

4



6.4 Members must consider the objections received to the proposed fees, together with the 
requirement for the cost recovery of the service and determine the level at which to set 
the fees. 

6.5 The agreed taxi and private hire fees are proposed to take effect from 1 April 2024. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 Any financial implications have been reported for budgetary control and as part of the 

financial plan. 
 
 

8. CRIME & DISORDER AND DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are none. 
 
 
9. APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 - Proposed fees for 2024/25 
Appendix 2 - Objections received 
Appendix 3 - Benchmarking document 

 
 
For further information contact:  

Christa Ferguson 
Licensing Manager 
Email: christa.ferguson@nfdc.gov.uk  
 
Joanne McClay 
Service Manager  
Environmental and Regulation 
Email: joanne.mcclay@nfdc.gov.uk  

Background Papers: 

None 

 

5

mailto:christa.ferguson@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:joanne.mcclay@nfdc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATION-LICENSING SERVICES Proposed Proposed
PROPOSED SCALE OF FEES AND CHARGES FOR 2024/25 Charges Charges increase 

2023/24 2024/25
HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE FEES
Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers dual licence
New or Renewal  (3 year dual licence) £142.00 £162.00 £20.00 3 yearly licence
Driver Awareness Test £37.00 £50.00 £13.00 One off cost
Duplicate driver's badge £12.50 £12.50 £0.00
Private Hire Operator Licence
New or Renewal (5 year licence)  (or pro rata if applicable) £509.00 £520.00 £11.00 5 yearly licence
Vehicle Licence 
Hackney Carriage  or Private Hire Vehicle - 1 year licence- (includes vehicle plate) £142.00 £167.00 £25.00 Annual fee
Vehicle test  or re-test £55.00 £60.00 £5.00 Fee per vehicle test
Vehicle - private plate registration (includes vehicle  plate) £63.00 £63.00 £0.00
Vehicle plate - replacement (bracket and insert) £24.00 £24.00 £0.00
Vehicle plate - replacement of insert £12.00 £12.00 £0.00
Vehicle plate - replacement of bracket and fixings £12.00 £12.00 £0.00
Vehicle stepped plate £25.00 £30.00 £5.00 One off cost if required
Executive vehicle exemption (includes vehicle plate) £0.00 £55.00 £55.00 Annual fee

APPENDIX 1

7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



This page is intentionally left blank



Taxis and private 
hire

NFDC 
2023/24
Current

NFDC 
suggested

2024/25

Southampton Test Valley Eastleigh BCP Winchester Portsmouth Wiltshire Fareham East Hants Havant 

Last reviewed (date) 01 April 2017 01 January 2024 01 April 2023 01 June 2016 01 April 2023 01 April 2018 01 April 2023 01 April 2020 01 April 2023
01 January 2024 01 April 2023

New Driver Licence £142.00         3 
years

£162.00     
3 years

£350.00          
HCD 3 years

£295.00          
PHD 3 years

£110.00      
  3 year
£96.00     
  1 year

£182.00       
  3 years

£175.00           
(inc DKT)

additional £50.00 
for dual licence

£117.00 £336.00             
PHD- 3 years

£418.00             
HCD-3 years

£293.00      
3 years (Dual) 

 £175.00        
3 years 

(HC or PH)
£230.00        

3 years (Dual) 

£235.00 £227.00

Renewal driver 
Licence

£142.00         3 
years

£162.00     
3 years

£350.00          
HCD 3 years

£295.00          
PHD 3 years

£95.00  
3 years    
 £65.00  

 year

£182.00       
3 years

£350.00           
3 years

additional £50.00 
for dual licence

£245.00      
3 years

£336.00             
PHD- 3 years      

£418.00             
HCD-3 years

£267.00      
3 years      
(Dual )

 £230.00        
3 years (Dual) 

£175.00        
3 years 

(HC or PHV)

£204.00 £183.00

Driver knowledge 
test

£37.00 £50.00 £50.00 N/K £15.00 Included in new 
driver application 

(£75.00 resit)

£30.00 £55.00 £60.00 £70.00 £41.00 £47.00

Private Hire 
Operator

£509.00         5 
years

£520.00     
5 Years

£1000.00     
 5 years

£212.00  
  5 years
£83.00  
 1 year

£365.00       
5 years

New Operator 
application £70.00 

and
£305.00 for a 5 year 

licence 
(up to 10 vehicles).

£30.00 per 
additional 10 

vehicles           

£514.00      
 5 years

£3850.00 5 
years

£539.00      
5 years

£945.00        
5 years

£355.00 £375.00

Vehicle  Licence        
HCV- 1 year

£142.00 £167.00 £180.00 £98.00 £180.00 £150.00 and 
£225.00

£173.00 £217.00 £240.00    
initial licence

£227.00
 renewal

£215.00 £161.00 £237.00

Vehicle  Licence        
PHV- 1 year

£142.00 £167.00 £170.00 £98.00 £180.00 £105.00 and 
£175.00

£173.00 £341.00 £240.00    
initial licence

£227.00    
renewal

£215.00 £161.00 £170.00

Vehicle test £55.00 £60.00 £65.00 £53.00 £49.00 included in vehicle 
fee

£65.00 £62.00 included in 
vehicle fee

included in 
vehicle fee

£54.00 Not known

APPENDIX 3

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Taxi Fees and Charges 2024-2025
	Appendix 1 - Taxi Fees and Charges
	Appendix 2 - Objections to Taxi Fees and Charges
	Appendix 3 - Benchmark Taxi Fees and Charges - Other Local Authorities




